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Sources of data at Oxford

• We’re considering data as a secondary resource
• Already gathered

• Available for re-use

• Quantitative or qualitative

• Not data you're collecting yourself

• Some disciplines see this as novel - others as routine

• Described as databases, datasets or archives
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Understanding the language (1)

Database or dataset

• A collection of information; numerical, textual etc.

• Structured, e.g. Excel spreadsheets, Word etc.

• Indexed

• Derived from a particular research project, source or programme

• Often downloaded or accessed

• Updated over time

• Intended for academic or commercial use?
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Databases - some examples

• Factiva: Business news sourced from Newspapers and business 
reports

• Proquest Historical newspapers: 11 individual paper archives (1830 
onwards) e.g. Times of India, Washington Post, Chinese newpapers, 
The Observer

• Reaxys: database containing millions of chemical substances and 
reactions, with associated chemical and physical properties and 
literature references

• Digital National Security Online: Declassified US policy documents

• Roper iPoll: US Opinion Polls

• Proquest Dissertations and Theses

… and Bibliographic Databases generally
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Understanding the language (2)

A data archive / repository
• Hosts a large collection of datasets or even 

databases

• Structured, indexed and documented

• Curated by an organisation; cared for and future-
proofed

• Sometimes discipline based

• Sometimes based around a specific institution or 
organisation

• Content is ordered or downloaded

• Static and unchanging

• Non- commercial / academic use
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Data archives - examples

•Governmental or Non-Governmental
• ORA: https://ora.ox.ac.uk/about

• UK Data Service: http://ukdataservice.ac.uk/

• UK Biobank: https://www.ukbiobank.ac.uk/

• ICPSR: https://www.icpsr.umich.edu

• Environmental Data Service (NERC): 
https://www.ukri.org/councils/nerc/facilities-and-resources/

• British Oceanographic Ocean Data: 
https://www.le.ac.uk/emoha/catalogue.html

• Research Data Repository Registry: http://www.re3data.org/
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UK Data Service

• International macro data from Eurostat, OECD, UN, 
World Bank, IMF, IEA.

• Survey and UK funded (e.g. ESRC) social science data

• Oral History and Qualitative data

• Advice on finding data deposits on the UK Data Service 
site https://ukdataservice.ac.uk/find-data/

Can browse and read documentation before 
ordering data

7

https://ukdataservice.ac.uk/find-data/


Understanding the language (3)

• Open Data portals
• Recent innovation

• Usually concentrate on statistical data

• Make data 'Open' publicly available via web

• May seem to duplicate what’s in archives and 
databases

• Question – do they differ?

8



Open Data portals - examples

Also called statistical data portals 
• UNdata: http://data.un.org/
• World Bank data: http://data.worldbank.org/
• UK National Statistics: http://www.statistics.gov.uk/
• U.S. Census: http://www.census.gov/
• National Bureau of Statistics of China 

http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/
• Hathi Trust Digital Library (repository of literary content from 

research libraries including content digitized via Google Books and 
the Internet Archive) https://www.hathitrust.org/
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Other data portals

Sometimes project specific…

• Oxford Poverty & Human Development Initiative:

https://ophi.org.uk

• The Oxford Roman Economy Database:

http://www.romaneconomy.ox.ac.uk/

• OII Research Program on AI & Work:

https://www.oii.ox.ac.uk/research/projects/research-programme-
on-ai-work/#news

• Our World in Data:

https://ourworldindata.org
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Browsing for data

• The sheer amount being made available creates 
problems of discovery

• Interested in seeing what’s available?
• Browse for them

• Increasingly datasets are cited
• e.g. Iterate (political terrorism database), British 

Household Panel Survey, Bloomberg Professional

• Becomes a literature search objective
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Focused searches for data

• Search engines include data alongside books, journal 
articles etc.
• SOLO, Databases A-Z

• Encouraged by publishers like Proquest
• Creating bibliographic databases

• Often available via subscription
• Asked for payment? Enter via SOLO etc with single sign-on
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What tool to use?

• SOLO
• Integrates with searches for traditional resources

• Databases A-Z
• Tighter focus on e-resources

• Subject Guides (LibGuides)
• Curated by your subject librarian
• Data and statistics for Social Sciences 

https://libguides.bodleian.ox.ac.uk/ssdata

• Bodleian Data Service
• Additional content on data management, analysis
• https://www.bodleian.ox.ac.uk/collections-and-resources/data

Same resources but different ‘shop windows’
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Caveats

• Search engines collate available resources and present 
them in a superficially unified way

• But how you access, view and use them can vary
• Be clear what is being made available

• Be clear in what format
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Some common examples

• Registration suggested or required
• Subscription database environment

• Common with external data archives

• Providing authentication

• Restrictions
• Subscription data limiting downloads

• Confidentiality dealt with by making access harder

• Archived data discoverable but not accessible
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Some other caveats

• Restrictions on how you use it
• For analysis only - cannot be quoted

• Use only with suppliers tools (e.g TDM)

• Cannot be shared

• Supplied tabulations cannot be altered

• Make sure you are aware of these!

• May need to analyse data within their 
browser/interface

• Data often available from multiple sources but with 
differing documentation and support
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Restricted data

• Information collected at the individual i.e. micro-level
• Very sensitive and confidential
• May include direct personal identifiers
• Or require special licensing or access approval

• E.g. economic data, population data, literature still in 
copyright, large corpora via API

• Only available pending strict application approval
• From e.g. Eurostat, Statistics Canada, UKDS Secure lab, 

ICPSR, Hathi Trust Research Centre

• Open data portals will not supply it

• Support making applications via Bodleian Data Librarian
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Documenting data

• Keep a track/log of resources consulted
• Good research practice
• Data AND contextual documentation
• Make use of citation tools
• Key element of Reproducible Research, 

transparency and Open Science

22



Thank you

• Follow up this session...

• See Subject Guides: 
https://libguides.bodleian.ox.ac.uk/home/subjects

• Data Research Support
john.southall@bodleian.ox.ac.uk

john.pilbeam@sbs.ox.ac.uk
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